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Stannard is a small mountain village located in Vermont's"Northeast 
Kingdom". The village center is approached by a dirt road, and con­ 
sists of two public buildngs, the Stannard Town Hall, and the Methodist- 
Episcopal Church. Two small houses have recently been built nearby, 
but the church and school building predominate.

The Stannard School House is a wood-frame, 2-story, gable-roofed building 
set on a granite foundation. The style of the building may be described 
as vernacular greek-revival, with a plan and massing commonly found on 
Vermont schoolhouses of the nineteenth century.

On the main elevation, granite steps lead to double doors, recently 
installed to replace the original panelled double doors which are in 
need of repair. Front (south) facade consists of three bays, the 6/6 
windows framed by simple wooden trim and a projecting wooden cornice, 
Simple doric pilasters frame the corners of the building, and are 
painted green to provide a contrast with the white-painted clapboards. 
A box cornice in the gable^end contains a series of overlapping boards, 
which simulate the lower part of a classical entablature, a five-point 
applied star decorates the center of the gable between the first and 
second stories a sign reading "Stannard", surrounded by two stars iden­ 
tifies the building as a municipal structure.

Later additions to the building have altered the remaining elevations, 
which include a wood-shed on the west elevation and a rear (north) 
ell, added circa 1910. The east elevation at that time has a 3-part 
8/8, 3 window added, a feature found on most Vermont schoolhouses 
built prior to 1900. Smaller-size clapboards than that on the main 
building covers the 1910 additions.

The interior of the building has been considerably altered, although some 
semblance of a schoolroom has been preserved on the east side of the 
building, the schoolroom used until 1964, when the State closed the 
building due to lack of plumbing, the building was successfully func­ 
tioned as a town hall since the school closing.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

According to a history of the Town of Stannard, "The first meetinghouse, 
first public house, first grist mill, first plysician, and first lawyer 
are among the things that never were," It is significant to the educa­ 
tional intentions of the founders of Stannard that there was a first 
school, organized in the fall of 1812, with the first schoolhouse built 
in 1823. The present building, dating after mid-century is significant 
as a vernacular statement of greek revival architecture in a rural 
Vermont town. According to local history, "the first school was kept 
by Barilla Morse in Rueben Crosby's barn in 1812. Mrs. Andrew Blair 
sent her girl to the first school, and paid the tuition with a pink 
handkerchief." While the date of the erection of the present school- 
house is unknown, it would presumably date after 1846, the year of 
reform in Vermont schoolhouse construction. In that year, the "First 
Annual Report of the State Superintendent of Common Schools" was pub­ 
lished, the following observation made about early schoolhouses in the 
State: "In the construction of the schoolhouse - embracing its material, 
style of architecture, and finish - as little care and taste are exhibited, 
as might be expected from the indifference manifested in regard to its 
location and surrounding circumstances."

The Superintendent's report was included in "School Architecture" by 
Henry Barnard, in which proposals for reform were made. The Town of 
Stannard schoolhouse was built in accordance with Barnard 1 s principles, 
which were concerned with location, style, size, and plan.

The schoolhouse first appears on the Caledonia County map of 1875.

The school was an active school until 1964, when the State closed the 
building due to a lack of adequate plumbing facilities. Presently, the 
building serves as the Town Clerk's Office and Town Meeting Hall.

1. Hemenway, Abby Maria. Vermont Historical Gazetteer: A magazine 
embracing a history of each town. V.I, Burlington. Miss A.M. 
Hemenway, 1868. p.434.

2. Child, Hamilton. Gazetteer of Caledonia & Essex Counties, VT., 
1764-1887. N.Y. Syracuse, 1887. p.307.

3. Barnard, Henry. School Architecture; or, Contributions to the 
Improvement of Schoolhouses in the United States . . . New York, 
A-.S. Barnes & Co., Cincinnati. H.W. Derby & Co. p. 45.
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